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New York City Department of Environmental Protection 
Land Acquisition Program 
Catskill / Delaware System 

Semi-Annual Report Due July 31, 2011 
Reporting Period: January 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011 

 
Prepared in accordance with the 

 New York City Filtration Avoidance Determination of July, 2007 
 

On January 21, 1997 the Watershed Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was signed, followed 
immediately by issuance of Water Supply Permit #0-9999-00051/00001 and then on December 
24, 2010 by a successor Permit by the New York State Department of Environmental 
Conservation.  These two documents, as well as the 1997, 2002, and 2007 Filtration Avoidance 
Determinations, provide the framework under which the City undertakes activities that lead to 
acquisition of lands for purposes of watershed protection.  This report summarizes progress over 
the most recent six-month period and for the duration of the program to date. 
 
Solicitation 
DEP’s goal for solicitation in 2011 is 60,000 acres.  During the first half of the year, DEP 
solicited 30,347 acres. 
 
Projects Signed to Purchase Contract 
During the first half of 2011, the City signed 39 purchase contracts representing 3,130 
acres of land in fee or conservation easement in the Catskill/Delaware system.  Program-
wide for Cat/Del, DEP alone has secured a grand total of 96,109 acres throughout the 
Cat/Del at a cost of $344 million (additional “soft” costs of about $29 million).  During the 
first half of 2011, the Farm Easement Program that is managed by WAC (also see below) 
secured an additional 315 acres, bringing total lands protected by DEP and WAC under 
the FAD in Cat/Del since 1997 to 117,682 acres1.  The attached tables provide additional 
details about signed contracts. 
 
Land and Conservation Easements Acquired 
During the first half of 2011, DEP closed 33 contracts totaling 3,635 acres.  In all, as of 
the end of this period, the City has closed 1,112 purchase agreements in the Cat / Del 
system totaling 83,058 acres (fee simple and conservation easements).  WAC has closed 
on 19,946 acres of the 21,573 acres signed to contract. 
 
Conservation Easements 
As of the end of this reporting period, DEP had secured 23,159 acres and WAC had 
secured 21,573 acres.  Of the 117,682 acres secured in the Cat/Del overall by DEP and 
WAC, 38.0% (44,732 acres) are protected under conservation easements. 
 
Farm and Forest Easement Programs 
WAC and DEP spent the subject period negotiating both an extension of the current Farm 
Easement Program contract beyond its September 15, 2012 termination date and to add 
$23 million, as well as to frame the $6 million five-year pilot Forest Easement Program as 

                                  
1  This total includes about 135 acres in the Croton system and 700 acres entirely outside of the Cat/Del watershed that 
were acquired as a part of transactions that were primarily within the Cat-Del system.  These lands were acquired 
because of the difficulty of subdividing certain properties that span the watershed boundary. 



  
 

 

outlined in the 2010 Water Supply Permit (Special Condition 31).  Total funding for the 
WAC Farm Easement Program can be summarized as follows: 
 
Original 1999 Program Contract – spent: $20m 
2006 allocation from $50m Supplementary Fund (per 2/5/04 EPA letter) – spent: $  7m 
2007 allocation (approved 12/07) from $50m LAP Supplementary Fund (per 
1/19/06 EPA letter) – funds being spent: 

$20m 

Additional funds budgeted pursuant to NYS DOH 4/30/08 letter (contract under 
negotiation): 

$23m 

Pilot Forest CE Program pursuant to 2010 WSP (contract under negotiation): $  6m 
Total pending NYC funding of Farm Easement Program: $76m 

 
NYS DEC Water Supply Permit # 0-9999-00051/00001 
During this period DEP has followed requirements of the 2010 Water Supply Permit; in 
addition to the several items outlined above and other WSP requirements that are 
routinely adhered to as part of LAP operations, the following tasks were addressed: 
 

o WAC and DEP found it necessary to revise the model WAC Farm Easement deed 
to provide certain new rights to grantors consistent with the 2010 Stakeholder’s 
Agreement.  Thus, pursuant to Special Condition 16(d)2(b), DEP submitted to DEC 
a request to modify the deed, which DEC approved on May 27, 2011. 

o WAC sent letters to grantors pursuant to Special Condition 16(d)3(b). 
o Riparian Buffer Program (Special Condition 29): in early June, the Greene County 

Land Trust and the Town of Hunter declined further participation in the PDI report 
or the Riparian Buffer Program.  DEP is currently working to find replacement 
organizations and to otherwise complete requirements of this deliverable. 

o Enhanced Land Trust Program (Special Condition 33): DEP has continued to work 
with many stakeholders and land trust partners to ensure this program will be 
implemented per the WSP. 

o Taxes on WAC Conservation Easements (Special Condition19a): The City 
submitted inter-municipal agreements to 23 municipalities; the agreements provide 
that Watershed Agricultural Easements acquired after January 1, 2011 will be 
taxed in accordance with proposed State Legislation.  As of June 30, 2011, the 
City had executed agreements with 14 of these municipalities. 

o Tax Litigation Avoidance Program (Special Condition 25b8):  During the reporting 
period, the City finalized language for the Tax Litigation Avoidance Program 
Contract with the Catskill Watershed Program, and has begun the City 
procurement process to register same.  

 
Transfer of Conservation Easements on Fee Acquisitions to NYS 

Since January 1, 2011 DEP has modified the model DEC CE in accordance with Special 
Condition 16.  A set of 13 conservation easements covering 230 LAP-acquired properties 
representing over 15,600 acres have been prepared using this new model document, and 
those easements are planned for submission to DEC in the second half of 2011.  DEP’s 
program-to-date easement conveyances to DEC total 53 CEs on 656 DEP properties 
comprising a total of 42,394 acres. 
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